Turkey Creek Homeowners Association -BYLAWS-

(AS OF MAY 1989)



(AS OF MAY 1989) BYLAWS OF THE TURKEY CREEK HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION TABLE OF CONTENTS

	ARTICLE I NAME AND LOCATION	PAG
	NAME AND LOCATION	
SECTION 1. SECTION 2.	NAME LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL MAILING ADDRESS	1 1
	ARTICLE II DEFINITIONS	
SECTION 1. SECTION 2. SECTION 3.	"ASSOCIATION" "THE PROPERTY" "TURKEY CREEK SUBDIVISION" "BOARD OF DIRECTORS"	1 1 2
SECTION 4. SECTION 5. SECTION 6. SECTION 7. SECTION 8.	"COMMON FACILITIES" "LOT" "OWNER" "RESIDENT" "DECLARATIONS"	2 2 2 2 2
SECTION 9. SECTION 10.	"PERSON" "LEGAL DAY"	2 2
	ARTICLE III MEMBERSHIP	
SECTION 1.	MEMBERSHIP	3
SECTION 2. SECTION 3. SECTION 4. SECTION 5.	CLASSES OF MEMBERSHIP MEMBERSHIP RIGHTS VOTING RIGHTS ADDING ADDITIONAL LOTS	3 3 3 3
	ARTICLE IV MEETING OF MEMBERS	
SECTION 1.	ANNUAL MEETING	4
SECTION 2. SECTION 3.	SPECIAL MEETING NOTICE	$rac{4}{4}$
SECTION 3. SECTION 4.	QUORUM	4

ARTICLE V VOTING

SECTION 1.	VOTING CLASSES	4	
SECTION 2.	BALLOTS		
SECTION 3.			
SECTION 4.	PROXIES	5	
SECTION 4.1	PROXY FORMAT	5	
SECTION 4.2	MULTIPLE PROXIES	6	
SECTION 5.	LETTER BALLOT	6	
SECTION 6.	SUSPENSION OF VOTING RIGHTS	6	
	ARTICLE VI		
	GENERAL OBLIGATIONS		
SECTION 1.	GENERAL MAINTENANCE	6	
SECTION 2.	COMMON FACILITIES	6	
SECTION 3.	FAILURE OF LOT MAINTENANCE BY OWNER	6	
SECTION 4.	EASEMENT	7	
SECTION 5.	EMERGENCY GARBAGE SERVICE	7	
SECTION 6.	ADHERENCE TO CITY ORDINANCE	7	
	ARTICLE VII		
	COMPLAINTS		
SECTION 1.	COMPLAINTS BY OWNERS	7	
SECTION 2.	COMPLAINTS BY THE ASSOCIATION	7	
SECTION 3.	REMEDY OF VIOLATIONS	8	
	ARTICLE VIII		
	AUTHORITY FOR ASSESSMENTS		
SECTION 1.	PURPOSE OF ASSESSMENTS	8	
SECTION 2.	MAXIMUM ASSESSMENTS	8	
SECTION 3.	SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS	8	
SECTION 4.	EXEMPT PROPERTIES	9	
SECTION 5.	DATE OF COMMENCEMENT OF ANNUAL		
	ASSESSMENTS DUE DATES	9	
SECTION 6.	EFFECT OF NONPAYMENT OF ASSESSMENT:		
	REMEDIES OF THE ASSOCIATION	9	
SECTION 7.	IMPLEMENTATION OF THE LIEN AND		

PERSONAL	OBLIGATION	ASSESSMENT	$\lceil \varsigma \rceil$
1 1715 0 7 1 8 7 1 1			

9

ARTICLE I	X
FUNDS	

SECTION 1.	DEPOSITS	10
SECTION 2.	OPERATING FUNDS	10
SECTION 3.	RECORDS	10
SECTION 4.	FISCAL YEAR	10
	ARTICLE X BOARD OF DIRECTORS	
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS	
SECTION 1.	MEMBERSHIP	10
(A)	PRESIDENT	10
(B)	VICE-PRESIDENT	10
(C)	SECRETARY	11
(D)	TREASURER	11
(E)	Member, Chair of Architectural Control Committee	
	(At-Large-A)	11
(F)	Member, At-Large-B	11
(G)	Member, At-Large-C	11
SECTION 2.	REGULAR MEETINGS	11
SECTION 3.	SPECIAL MEETINGS	11
SECTION 4.	QUORUM	11
SECTION 5.	MINUTES	11
SECTION 6.	TERM	12
SECTION 7.	VACANCIES	12
SECTION 8.	REMOVAL	12
SECTION 9.	COMPENSATION	12
SECTION 10.	ACTIONS TAKEN WITHOUT A MEETING	12
SECTION 11.	SPECIAL APPOINTMENTS	12
SECTION 12.	MULTIPLE OFFICES	12
SECTION 13.	SUCCESSION	12
SECTION 14.	BOND	12
POM	ARTICLE XI VERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS	
rOv	VERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS	
SECTION 1.	POWERS	12
SECTION 2.	RESTRICTIONS	13

SECTION 3.	DUTIES	13
SECTION 4. DEVIATION POWERS		14
SECTION 5.	OWNER WAIVERS	14
SECTION 6.	ACTS OF THE BOARD: INDEMNIFICATION	14
	ARTICLE XII COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD	
	COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD	
SECTION 1.	LIST	14
SECTION 2.	ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL - GENERAL	15
SECTION 2.1	ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL	15
SECTION 2.2	IMPROVEMENTS	15
SECTION 2.3	APPLICATION PROCEDURE	15
SECTION 2.4	COMMITTEE STRUCTURE	16
SECTION 2.5	REVIEW PROCEDURES AND TIME FRAMES	16
SECTION 2.6	APPEAL	17
SECTION 3.	AUDIT COMMITTEE	17
SECTION 4.	NOMINATING COMMITTEE	17
SECTION 5.	CRIME WATCH	17
SECTION 6.	BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE	18
SECTION 7.	NEWSLETTER COMMITTEE	18
SECTION 8.	PUBLIC RELATIONS COMMITTEE	18
SECTION 9.	RECREATION COMMITTEE	18
SECTION 10.	WELCOME AND HOSPITALITY COMMITTEE	18
SECTION 11.	ENGINEERING COMMITTEE	18
SECTION 12.	ACCOUNTABILITY	18
	ARTICLE XIII	
	NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF DIRECTORS	
SECTION 1.	NOMINATION	19
SECTION 2.	NOMINATION PROCEDURE	19
SECTION 3.	OFFICES TO BE FILLED	19
SECTION 4.	ELECTION	19
	A D'ELCI E VIV	
	ARTICLE XIV GENERAL PROVISIONS	
CECTION 1	DUDATION	10
SECTION 1.	DURATION	19 10
SECTION 2.	ENFORCEMENT	19
SECTION 3.	SEVERABILITY COVERNING LAW	20
SECTION 4.	GOVERNING LAW	20

SECTION 5. SECTION 6.	INCLUSION OF ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION PARALLEL RULES	20 20	
	ARTICLE XV NOTICES		
SECTION 1. SECTION 2.	NOTICES PERSONAL SERVICE	20 20	
ARTICLE XVI AMENDMENTS			
SECTION 1. SECTION 2. SECTION 3. SECTION 4. SECTION 5.	PROCEDURE CONFLICT PROPOSED AMENDMENTS COPIES OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS BY THE ASSOCIATION BOARD OF DIRECTORS	21 21 21 21 21	
ARTICLE XVII BOOKS, RECORDS, AND PAPERS			
SECTION 1. SECTION 2.	INSPECTION COPIES	21 21	
ARTICLE XVIII INSURANCE			
SECTION 1. SECTION 2. SECTION 3.	POLICIES ATTORNEY IN FACT RESTORATION	22 22 22	

BYLAWS OF TURKEY CREEK HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

STATE OF FLORIDA)	
)	TO WIT:
COUNTY OF BREVARD)	
KNOW ALL MEN BY	THESE PRESENTS, that these Bylaws, made, and entered
into this day of	A.D. by THE TURKEY CREEK HOMEOWNERS
	da Not-For-Profit Corporation, hereinafter referred to as the
Association.	-

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, The Association is the legal representative of the real property owners described in Article II of these Bylaws: and,

WHEREAS, The Association desires to provide for the preservation of the values and amenities in the community, and for the maintenance of the Common Facilities; and

WHEREAS, The Association desires to be compassionate towards all members without regard of circumstances, as it effects their properties and sincerely wishes to provide for the betterment of all. The purpose of the Board of Directors is to insure that these virtues are upheld; and,

WHEREAS, The Association is incorporated under the Laws of the State of Florida as a Not-For-Profit Corporation, THE TURKEY CREEK HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., for the purpose of exercising the function stated; and,

WHEREAS, The Association exists, and was created, and recited in the Declaration of Covenants, Agreements, Limitations, and Restrictions as a part of the official Land Records in Brevard County, Florida. The Association name exists in a valid Certificate of Assumed Name as part of the Official Land Records in Brevard County, Florida.

NOW, THEREFORE, The Association declares the following Bylaws of THE TURKEY CREEK HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION INC.

ARTICLE I NAME AND LOCATION

Section 1. NAME. The name of the corporation is THE TURKEY CREEK HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. hereafter referred to as the Association. The principal office of the corporation shall be located at the residence of the Secretary of the Board of Directors. Meetings of the Association Members and Directors may be held at such places within the County of Brevard as may be designated by the Board of Directors.

Section 2. LOCATION OF PRINCIPAL MAILING ADDRESS. The principal mailing address of the Association shall be at a place designated by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE II DEFINITIONS

Section 1. "ASSOCIATION or THE ASSOCIATION" means THE TURKEY CREEK HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., its successors and assigns, a Not-For-Profit Corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Florida. The Association was recited in a Certificate of Assumed Named Dated August 8, 1988, and recorded in the Official Land Records of Brevard County, Florida at ORB 2931 Pages 1681-2. The Association was issued an Employer Identification Number (EIN) of 59-2876243 by the U.S. Department of Treasury, Internal Revenue Service on January 27, 1981 as a Not-For-Profit Homeowners Association under applicable sections of the Federal Tax Code.

Section 2. "THE PROPERTY" means the following described property:

Lots 01 to 42, inclusive, Block C,

Lots 01 to 04, inclusive, Block D,

Lots 01 to 05, inclusive, Block G,

Lots 01 to 07, inclusive, Block H,

Lots 01 to 06, inclusive, Block J,

Lots 01 to 08, inclusive, Block K,

Lots 01 to 13, inclusive, Block L,

Lots 01 to 03, inclusive, Block M,

Lots 01 to 06, inclusive, Block N,

Lots 01 to 03, inclusive, Block P,

Lots 01 to 16, inclusive, Block R,

Lots 01 to 40, inclusive, Block S, and the addition of

Lot 251, T28, R37E, S26, per Palm Bay Ordinance 83-68, as described in ORB 2887, PG 0459

Described in the subdivision plat, Plat Book 25, Page 111-112, and as amended due to survey error in Official Records Book (ORB) 2017 at Page 0030 and as recorded in the Official land Records Book (ORB) 1985, at Page (PG) 117, and amended in Official Land Records Book (ORB) 70 at Page 274, in the public land records of Brevard County, Florida, and developed from property in Highland Shores, as recorded in Plat Book 12, at Page 43 of the public land records of Brevard County, Florida, more particularly described as: the northwest corner of the NE ¼ of Section 26, Township 28 South, Range 37 East. The entrance road, Mandarin Drive shall be as described in ORB 1404 at Page 370, with

the balance of the subdivision roads as described in the plat.

Each lot so described in the subdivision plat and is deemed to become a part of this description as fully and completely if set out specifically by legal meets and bounds for each lot. The term "TURKEY CREEK SUBDIVISION" shall refer to the collection of these lots.

- **Section 3. "BOARD OF DIRECTORS or THE BOARD"** means the Board of Directors of THE TURKEY CREEK HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.
- **Section 4.** "COMMON FACILITIES" means those areas of land shown on the recorded subdivision plat and intended to be devoted to the common use and enjoyment of the owners, such as the Main Front Entrance at the corner of Mandarin Drive, NE and Troutman Boulevard.
- **Section 5. "LOT"** means any plot of land or real property shown on the subdivision map, with the exception of the Common Facilities and any other area which may be dedicated to public use.
- **Section 6.** "OWNER" means the recorded Owner of fee simple title to any lot which is a part of the Properties, including contract sellers, but excluding those having such interest merely as security for the performance of an obligation provided the purchaser at a foreclosure sale of Trustee's sale shall be deemed to be an Owner. The requirement of membership shall not apply to any mortgages or third party acquiring title by foreclosure or otherwise, pursuant to the mortgage instrument, or those holding by, through or under such mortgages or third person.
- **Section 7.** "**RESIDENT**" means any person who resides in the Properties who may or may not have voting interest in the Lot.
- **Section 8.** "**DECLARATIONS**" means the Declaration of Covenants, Limitations, Agreements, Conditions, and Restrictions contained in the Deed of Declaration attached to the Subdivision Plat for the Properties recorded in the Clerk's Office of the Circuit Court of Brevard County, as part of the official Land records, in the State of Florida.
- **Section 9.** "**PERSON**" means an individual, corporate partnership, association, trust, or other legal entity, or any combination thereof.
- **Section 10.** "LEGAL DAY" means legal business days of the week, Monday through Friday, inclusive. Legal holidays as defined by the Governor of Florida will not be used in the county of legal days, nor will any United States Federal Holiday as defined by the United States Code and Statutes, or Presidential Order.

ARTICLE III MEMBERSHIP

- **Section 1. MEMBERSHIP.** Every Person who is an Owner in any lot which is subject to the Declaration of the Association shall have membership in the Association. Each Owner shall provide the Secretary of the Association the name of the Owner, address(es), and telephone number(s). The Association membership may not be separated from any Lot. The transfer of any Membership in the Association shall be mandatory for all Owners, and can not be waived or refused on any basis.
- **Section 2. CLASSES OF MEMBERSHIP.** The Association shall have two classes of Membership. Class A shall consist of Owners of Lots on which houses are built and occupancy permits have been issued by the City of Palm Bay. Class B shall consist of Owners of Lots which are unimproved, or improvements are incomplete. In the event that one house occupies two lots, the unit shall be deemed to be one improved lot for voting purposes.
- **Section 3. MEMBERSHIP RIGHTS.** The rights of membership are subject to the full payment of annual and special assessments levied by the Association.
- **Section 4. VOTING RIGHTS.** Each Owner shall have the right to vote, in person, or by written proxy, his/her membership in the Association. When more than one Person owns an interest in any Lot, all such Persons shall be members, but only ONE Membership may be voted for each Lot. The method of voting a Membership owned by more than one Person shall be as the Owners shall decide among themselves. Tenants have no voting rights unless they request and receive proxy from the Owner.
- **Section 5. ADDING ADDITIONAL LOTS.** Additional Lots which are added to the Turkey Creek Subdivision shall become subject to these Bylaws by the recording of the Declarations containing the same exact instant indenture which created the original subdivision plat. Any subsequent Declarations shall not alter any of the rights of the members of the Association and shall be uniform between all Lots. Lots outside the current boundaries of the Subdivision may be added by meeting the following five criteria:
- 1) Acceptance by a majority vote of the Board of Directors, and a majority of the votes of all eligible Memberships, and
- 2) Attachment of the Declaration to the title of the Property, and
- 3) Lot must be contiguous with a current Association member Lot, and
- 4) Complete conformance with the Declarations, or waiver by the Board of Directors as provided for in these Bylaws, and
- 5) Adoption of a resolution of the City Council of Palm Bay adding the lot of Turkey Creek (if required by the City).

The Association reserves the right to amend, or refile the subdivision plat at such

time that in the judgment of the Board of Directors it is necessary to do so for the proper operation of the Association.

ARTICLE IV MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

- **Section 1. ANNUAL MEETING.** The Annual meeting of the members of the Association shall be held on the second Monday in May of each year at an hour and place within the City Limits of Palm Bay, Florida designated by the Board of Directors in the notice of such meeting.
- **Section 2. SPECIAL MEETINGS.** Special meetings of the members may be called for any purpose by the Board of Directors. A petition by a minimum of 25% of members eligible to vote my be presented to the Secretary to call a special meeting without Board of Directors endorsement.
- **Section 3. NOTICE.** Written notice of any Association Meeting shall be given in advance to the members in the Association Newsletter, or by First Class Mail.
- **Section 4. QUOROM.** The physical presence at any Association meeting of twenty percent (20%) of Association Memberships entitled to vote, without regard to Membership class, shall constitute a quorum needed to hold a meeting and transact business.

ARTICLE V VOTING

- **Section 1. VOTING CLASSES.** There shall be two voting classes, under the descriptions of the two classes of membership (Article III, Section 2). Class A members shall be entitled to two votes for each home owned. Class B members shall be entitled to one vote for each lot owned. Tenant residents may secure a proxy from the Owner to vote, if desired.
- **Section 2. BALLOTS.** All elections to the Board of Directors shall be made on a written official Ballot, provided by the Secretary, which shall:
 - a. Name the vacancies to be filled,
 - b. Set forth the names and addresses of those nominated by the Nominating Committee for each vacancy,
 - c. Contain a space for members to write in one "write-in" candidate for each position,
 - d. Indicate which nominees are incumbent in the position they are nominated for,
 - e. State any other questions to come before the Membership for approval or rejection.

A sample Ballot shall be available at least ten (10) business days before the Annual Meeting, and the slate recommended shall be published in the Association Newsletter for delivery to the Members before the meeting. Out of County lot owners shall receive at least twenty (20) days' written notice of the date of the Annual Meeting with a proxy attached for return, if desired.

Section 3. VOTING PROCEDURE. Each member shall receive as many ballots as s/he has votes. No member shall receive a Ballot until s/he has received certification from the Secretary that all assessments are paid. The completed ballots, when called for at the Annual Meeting shall be returned as follows:

- a) Each ballot shall be folded in half, and
- b) Contain a serial number, placed by the Secretary on the ballot as it is issued to ensure a valid count. The serial number shall never be associated with a member's name or other identifying data in any way

The Nominating Committee Chair shall act as the election teller, with at least two (2) Members as witnesses. The Teller shall verify:

- a) The total number of valid ballots returned
- b) The total number of ballots given out by the Secretary
- c) The tally of votes for each candidate in each office
- d) The number of invalid ballots, and the reasons for each
- e) The results of any questions put to the members on the ballot
- f) The names of the tellers and witnesses to the count.

The tellers shall report to the President, in writing, the results of the election. It is acceptable to use a ballot form marked results in a clear and conspicuous manner. The President shall then announce the results to the general membership. In the event of a tie, a second vote shall be held for that office only, in the manner outlined above.

Ballots shall be retained by the Secretary for six (6) months and then destroyed. The result shall be reported in writing to the Membership via the Association Newsletter within thirty (30) calendar days following the Annual Meeting.

Section 4. PROXIES. At all Association Meetings, a member may vote in person or by written proxy. All proxies shall be signed and filed in original form with the Secretary prior to the meeting. Every proxy shall be revocable by a member attending the meeting and shall cease at the end of the meeting for which is was filed.

Section 4.1. PROXY FORMAT. A proxy need not be in any pre-printed form, but must be clearly and legibly contain the following elements:

- a) An original signature;
- b) A date;
- c) Name of assigned proxy holder. Silent or unassigned proxies will automatically be assigned to the Board of Directors to vote in accordance with the majority vote of the Board of Directors;
- d) The street address, lot number, and block number of member assigning proxy;
- e) Name of the Owner of Record;
- f) Any and all restriction of proxy.

The Board of Directors may make available pre-printed proxy forms prior to each meeting of Members.

Section 4.2. MULTIPLE PROXIES. No one proxy form shall be used for more than one (1) member. Any member holding multiple proxies shall present separate forms for each.

Section 5. LETTER BALLOT. The Board of Directors may from time to time and at their sole discretion, place matters before the voting members by Letter Ballot. Such Letter Ballot shall be by name, address, lot number, Block Number, and date, and shall be signed by the voting member. The question to be voted shall be stated clearly in writing, along with a background statement, a recommendation regarding the merits of the question by the Board of Directors, and the effects of both a negative and a positive vote. The Letter Ballot shall be sent by first class U.S. Mail to the address of record of each Member. The return date shall be set by the Board of Directors, and shall be no less than twenty business days from the date of the Ballot. At least a majority of the returns (51%) of the eligible Memberships shall be required for the vote to be valid. The return shall be in a Board-provided postage prepaid envelope. The question shall carry if a majority of the returned Letter Ballots (51%) vote in the affirmative. The Board of Directors shall establish procedures to ensure the accuracy, authenticity and validity of all such Letter Ballots. Any matter, except the election of officers, or the setting an Annual or Special Assessments may be placed before the Members by Letter Ballot.

Section 6. SUSPENSION OF VOTING RIGHTS. The Membership rights of any Person whose interest in the properties is subject to the Articles of the Bylaws, may be suspended by action of the Board of Directors during the period when the Assessments remain unpaid. Upon payment of such assessments to the Treasurer, the Member's rights and privileges shall be restored.

ARTICLE VI GENERAL OBLIGATIONS

Section 1. GENERAL MAINTENANCE. Each Owner shall maintain, on a regular basis, all improvements, trees, grass, and foliage on the Lot in a neat and orderly manner at all times. Each Owner shall keep under full control, all domestic animals as provided for in the Brevard County Ordinance 85-32, as amended. Violations of this section shall be treated as complaints of the Board of Directors.

Section 2. COMMON FACILITIES. The Board of Directors shall maintain the Common Facilities.

Section 3. FAILURE OF LOT MAINTENANCE BY OWNER. It is the policy and intent of this Association not to take any action unless and until all reasonable avenues of discussion have been exhausted. If the Board of Directors determines, by unanimous decision, that an emergency situation exists which would endanger the general or public health, welfare or safety, so that immediate repairs, action, or maintenance must be made in order to prevent damage to other Properties, or the endangerment of life, it shall have the right to undertake such actions without notice.

Section 4. EASEMENT. The Board of Directors is hereby granted a limited easement of use along the public utility and drainage easements as recorded in the Subdivision Plat to

determine compliance with the terms of the Declarations. Entry on a Lot under these circumstances will not be deemed trespass, provided the Board has used every available method to contact the Owner of the Lot in advance of such inspection, and to arrange for a mutually agreed upon time and date of the inspection.

Section 5. EMERGENCY GARBAGE SERVICE. The Board of Directors may, at any time, cause refuse or debris to be removed from any Lot, and charge the Owner by means of a Special Assessment. The Board shall use every available method to contact the Owner of the Lot in advance of such action.

Section 6. ADHERENCE TO CITY ORDINANCE. No member of the Association shall be in any manner in violation of the Ordinances of the City of Palm Bay, Zoning Codes or the Ordinances of Brevard County for the Properties.

ARTICLE VII COMPLAINTS

Section 1. COMPLAINTS BY OWNERS. If any Owner believes that any other Owner is in violation of any Association rule, Bylaw, or deed restriction, s/he may notify a member of the Board of Directors, with confidentiality maintained by that Board member, who shall present the matter at the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors. Should the complaint pertain to a member of the Board of Directors, s/he must be excused from the initial discussion of the complaint. If a majority of the members of Board of Directors, concur with the complaint, then the complaint shall become the Board's own complaint, and be handled as provided in Section 2 below. If the Board does not concur with the complaint, then the Board of Directors shall respond to the Owner in writing within twenty (20) business days from the date of the Board meeting as to the reasons why the complaint was not valid from the Board's viewpoint.

Section 2. COMPLAINTS BY THE ASSOCIATION. If a majority of the members of the Board of Directors believes any Owner is in violation of any Association rule, Bylaw, or deed restriction, it shall notify the Owner in writing, explaining the reasons for complaint, possible solutions, and a time limit for the remedy. The Association will make every effort to reach a reasonable solution agreeable to both parties.

If the Owner fails to show progress in the remedy of the alleged violation within the period of time specified by the Board of Directors, and all reasonable avenues of discussion have been exhausted, then the Association shall have the right to:

- a) Institute the appropriate legal action to correct the complaint, or
- b) Submit the dispute to arbitration, to be held in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration Association by an action of the majority of the Arbitrators.

The Association reserves the right to use either method of resolution without regard to any prior matter, and without limiting any future action.

Section 3. REMEDY OF VIOLATIONS. The prevailing party in any such litigation or arbitration shall be entitled to recover from the other party all reasonable receipted costs and expenses, including attorney fees. If arbitration is undertaken, and the arbitrators hold for the Owner, then that complaint can not be brought before arbitration again unless the specific details of the complaint have changed. If the arbitrators hold for the Association, the Owner shall promptly remedy the violation.

ARTICLE VIII AUTHORITY FOR ASSESSMENTS

Section 1. PURPOSE OF ASSESSMENTS. Annual Assessments levied by the Association shall be uniform among all lots and used exclusively to promote the recreation, health, safety, property value, and general welfare of the Residents in the Properties, and for the improvement and maintenance of the Common Facilities.

All increases in the Annual Assessments, and Association wide Special Assessments, must be place before the Membership for approval by ballot at a duly called meeting.

Section 2. MAXIMUM ASSESSMENTS. The maximum Annual Assessment shall be administered as follows:

- a) The Annual Assessment may be increased each fiscal year, effective June 1 of such year, by an amount not greater than ten percent (10%) of the previous year's Assessment or ten dollars (\$10.00), and,
- b) The failure of the Association to fix the Annual Assessments for any fiscal year shall not be deemed a waiver or a release of any Owner from the obligation to pay the Annual Assessment, but the Annual Assessment fixed for the preceding fiscal year shall continue until a new Assessment is fixed.

Section 3. SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS. In addition to the Annual Assessments, the Association may levy in any fiscal year Special Assessments for:

- a) Defraying, in whole or part, the cost of any construction, reconstruction, or expected repair or replacement of capital improvement on the Common Facilities, including the necessary fixtures and personal property provided that any such assessment shall have the assent by vote of at least two thirds (2/3) of the membership present at a quorum meeting; these Special Assessments shall be used for overall Association needs and shall be applied equally to all Lots; or,
- b) Paying for emergency repairs, restoration, replacement, and remedying violations as allowed for in these Bylaws, by a majority vote of the Board of Directors. This type of Special Assessment shall be levied on an individual Lot Owner and shall be due immediately upon demand. No membership vote is required in this instance.

Section 4. EXEMPT PROPERTIES. All lots shall be assessed. Properties exempt from Assessment are:

- a) All properties dedicated to and accepted by a local public authority and devoted to public use (i.e., the road right of way), or
- b) All common facilities, or
- c) All property exempted from taxation by the Laws of the State of Florida, upon the terms and to the extent of such legal exemption.

Section 5. DATE OF COMMENCEMENT OF ANNUAL ASSESSMENTS: DUE

DATES. The Annual Assessment provided for in these Bylaws shall commence to all Lots on June 1, the beginning of each fiscal year. After consideration of current maintenance, administrative, and repair costs, and after a reasonable reserve for contingencies of the Association, the Board of Directors shall estimate and fix the Annual Assessment as determined above, in April of each year. Upon approval of the majority of the eligible Membership present at the Annual Meeting in May, the Board shall then notify each Owner by mail of the amount of the Annual Assessment, on or before the first day of July of that year. Each Annual Assessment shall be due and payable on August first.

Section 6. EFFECT OF NONPAYMENT OF ASSESSMENT: REMEDIES OF THE ASSOCIATION. Any Assessment not paid within thirty (30) days after the due date shall be considered delinquent, and a second notice sent. The Association may bring an action at law against the Owner personally obligated to pay the Assessment when it is one hundred eighty (180) days past due, to obtain a judgment which shall become a lien against the Lot. Interest, costs, and reasonable attorney's fees for such legal action shall be added to the amount of the Assessment as part of the judgment against the Lot. No Owner may waive, or otherwise escape liability for the Assessment by non-use of the Common Facilities, or abandonment of the Lot owned. The failure of the Association to take action at law shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any past or future rights to collect delinquent assessments.

Section 7. IMPLEMENTATION OF THE LIEN AND PERSONAL OBLIGATION ASSESSMENTS. Each owner is deemed to constructively agree, as provided for in the Declarations to pay upon demand to the Association:

- a) Annual Assessments, and
- b) Special Assessments, which may be established from time to time by the Board of Directors.

The Annual Assessment and Special Assessments, together with costs of collection, administration, filing, accounting, and reasonable attorney's fees, shall be a charge on the land, and shall be a continuing equity lien on the Lot against which each assessment is made. Unpaid assessments shall be deemed to be a defect in Title.

Title defects upon the lot at time of closing shall not be cured unless and until all assessments due and payable are received, receipted, and funds released by the financial institution of the Association for those Lots delinquent at settlement.

ARTICLE IX FUNDS

Section 1. DEPOSITS. The funds for the Association shall be maintained in a bank chartered under the Federal Reserve System and having Federal Deposit Insurance. No other form of financial account in any stock fund, money market, brokerage account, or margin account shall be used for the operating funds of the Association. If reserve funds are to be carried, they shall be placed in a Federally Insured Certificate of Deposit, Treasury Note, or Savings Bond.

Section 2. OPERATING FUNDS. The operating funds of the Association shall normally be obtained from Annual Assessments and Special Assessments. Other voluntary donations or fund raisers may be employed provided that they are operated on a breakeven basis, and return excess monies into the general operating account of the Association.

Section 3. RECORDS. All records of the Association shall be open for inspection by any member by appointment with the Association Treasurer or Secretary.

Section 4. FISCAL YEAR. The Board of Directors shall have the power to set the period and duration of the fiscal year of the Association. In the absence of specific Board resolution, the fiscal year shall commence on June 1, and end on May 31 of the following year.

ARTICLE X BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. MEMBERSHIP. The Members of the Board of Directors of the TURKEY CREEK HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. shall be the President, Vice-President, Secretary, Treasurer, and three (3) Directors-At-Large. Each shall have one vote on matters concerning the property, business and affairs of the Association. During the period between the Annual Meeting and installation, there shall be effort by all the Board of Director Members to preserve continuity in administration. This shall include combined meetings of the incoming and outgoing Board members to brief, train, and assist the newly elected Board Members on the activities, functions, policies, business, financial, legal, and community affairs of the Association:

- a) PRESIDENT. The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors and shall see that all orders and resolutions of the Board of Directors are carried out; execute notes, checks, leases, mortgages, deeds, grants, permits, contracts, instruments, and policy correspondence as may be called for in the conduct of Association business. The President shall be responsible for exercising any management function required to organize and implement the business of the Association. Candidates for the office of President must have served at least one prior year on the Board of Directors.
- b) VICE-PRESIDENT. The Vice-President shall perform all of the duties of the President in the absence, incapacity, illness, death, incompetence, or resignation of the President. The Vice-President shall perform all other duties as may be assigned

- by the Board of Directors.
- c) SECRETARY. The Secretary shall serve as the Corporation Secretary as well as the corresponding and recording Secretary for the Association and Board of Directors. The Secretary shall act as the registered Agency under the Statutes of Florida for the Association as a Not-For-Profit Corporation. The Secretary shall record the votes, keep the minutes of all proceedings, shall sign all certificates of Membership, shall cause a roster to be kept of all Members of the Association, shall prepare all correspondence for the Association, shall prepare and file all corporate reports and forms under the Statutes of Florida, shall receive all correspondence for Association, shall keep all corporate records for the Association as required by law, receive and keep records of all applications for improvement to any Lot in the Subdivision, and see that such applications are forwarded to the Board member A for resolution in a timely fashion, and act as Parliamentary authority as needed.
- d) TREASURER. The Treasurer shall receive and deposit in appropriate bank accounts all monies of the Association, and shall disburse such funds as directed by the Board of Directors. The Treasurer shall sign all checks and notes of the Association, provided that such instruments are countersigned by the President, Vice-President or Secretary. The Treasurer shall prepare all Annual and Special Assessment notices, and oversee their collection. The Treasurer shall keep proper books of account and shall oversee the preparation of the Annual Budget, balance sheet statement, and Federal tax returns. The Treasurer shall make regular reports at meetings of the Board of Directors and shall inform the Board of Directors of all assessments unpaid.
- e) Member, Chair of Architectural Control Committee (At-Large-A)
- f) Member, At Large B
- g) Member, At Large C

Section 2. REGULAR MEETINGS. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held monthly, at such place and hour as may be fixed from time to time by resolution of the Board of Directors.

Section 3. SPECIAL MEETINGS. Special Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held when called by the President of the Board, or by any two (2) members of the Board of Directors, after not less than one (1) day's notice to each member of the Board from the Secretary.

Section 4. QUORUM. A majority, four (4) of the seven (7) members of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Every act done or decision made by a quorum of the Board shall be regarded as an act of the entire Board. If a quorum is not present at any meeting, the President may adjourn the meeting until another date when a quorum is present.

Section 5. MINUTES. The Secretary shall record all decisions and actions in the minutes of the Board meetings. Such minutes shall be the official, legal, and binding record of the transaction of the business that shall come before the Board of Directors. Ratification of these minutes by the Board of Directors shall constitute approval of all actions in the absence of any member of the Board.

Section 6. TERM. Members of the Board of Directors shall serve for a term on one (1)

year commencing June 1 following the May Annual Meeting. Members of the Board of Directors shall be voted on for that specific office by a majority of the eligible Members of the Association in attendance, or by valid proxies, at the Annual Meeting.

Section 7. VACANCIES. The Board of Directors shall, by a majority vote, select replacement members to fill any vacancies which may occur.

Section 8. REMOVAL. Any Director may be removed from the Board by a majority (51%) vote of the eligible Membership of the Association in attendance at a duly called meeting.

Section 9. COMPENSATION. No voting member of the Board of Directors shall receive compensation for any service that may be rendered to the Association. However, any member of the Board of Directors may be, upon application to the Treasurer and the presentation of valid receipts, be reimbursed for the actual authorized expenses incurred in the performance of his/her duties. Such payments shall be subject to audit and inspection by other Board Members, and the Association Members.

Section 10. ACTIONS TAKEN WITHOUT A MEETING. The Board of Directors shall have the right to take any reasonable and justifiable action in the absence of a meeting by obtaining the written approval of all members of the Board of Directors. Any action approved shall have the same effect as though taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors. Additionally, in the event of unusual circumstances, a verbal telephonic poll may be taken of the Board by a member, and the results of such a majority poll shall have the same affect as if taken at a meeting in person. Such a poll must be reported in writing at the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors.

Section 11. SPECIAL APPOINTMENTS. The Board of Directors may elect such other non-voting advisors and committee chairs as the affairs of the Association may require.

Section 12. MULTIPLE OFFICES. No person shall simultaneously hold more than one of any of the Board of Directors positions.

Section 13. SUCCESSION. In the event of the President's inability for any reason to carry out the required duties, the Vice-President shall assume the office. If the Vice-President is unable to act, then a Member-at-Large selected by the remaining Board of Directors shall serve.

Section 14. BOND. All members of the Board of Directors shall serve without Bond, unless the Board of Directors shall decide otherwise.

ARTICLE XI POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. POWERS. The Board of Directors shall have the power to:

- a) Adopt and publish rules and regulations governing the use of the common facilities; and
- b) Adopt and publish rules and regulation governing the personal conduct of the members and guests on the Common Facilities, and ,
- c) Exercise for the Association all powers, duties, and authority vested in, or delegated to this Association and not reserved to the Membership by other provisions, of these Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation, the Declarations, and the Statutes of Florida with respect to Not-for-Profit Corporations; and,
- d) Declare the office of a member of the Board of Directors to be vacant in the event such member shall be absent without excuse from three (3) three consecutive regular meetings of the Board of Directors; and,
- e) Employ a manager, auditor, lawyer, accountant, independent contractor, engineer, surveyor, or other such employees as they may be deemed necessary to prescribe their duties and compensation, and to require bonding where needed; and
- f) To enter into agreements for the maintenance, repair, and operation of the Association properties, or any portion, with any other party; and,
- g) To call special meetings of the Association members whenever it deems necessary, and it shall call a meeting at any time upon written request of the one-fourth of the voting membership; and,
- h) To establish up to the maximum amount allowed under the Bylaws and Declarations, levy, assess, and collect the assessments and other charges.

Section 2. RESTRICTIONS. No member of the Board of Directors of the Association shall be, at any time, employed as a common law employee of the Association. Nothing contained in the Bylaws, however, shall be construed to prohibit the employment of any member of the Association by the Board of Directors.

It is the intent of these Bylaws that no Member of the Board of Directors shall earn a salary, commission, bonus, or similar payment as a result of membership on the Board, notwithstanding actual approved expenses.

Section 3. DUTIES. It shall be the duty of the Board of Directors to:

- a) Cause to be kept a complete record of all of its acts and corporate affairs, and to preserve same, and to present a written statement in the form of an Annual Report, complete with a financial accounting at the Annual meeting of the members; and,
- b) Supervise all officers, agents, and employees of this Association, see that their duties are properly and faithfully performed; and,
- c) Fix the amount of the Annual Assessment against each lot,
- d) Fix the amount, if any, of the required Special Assessment against each lot, and state in writing the purpose of the charge; and,
- e) Procure and maintain adequate insurance, as needed, on the assets and business matters of the Association; and,
- f) Cause the Common Facilities to be maintained; and,

- g) Cause a roster of the properties to be prepared, together with the Assessments and payments on each, which shall be kept in the office of the Association, and to be open to the inspection of any Member; and,
- h) To cause the enforcement of, and conformance to, all Declarations and Bylaws by all Members of the Association in any manner permitted by the laws of the State of Florida, including legal action or injunctive relief; and,
- i) Authorize public appearance, statements, and the like, before governmental bodies which affect the Association or the interests of the General membership, to include any actions at law as needed to protect the values of the Properties; and,
- j) To cause a Crime-Watch function to be staffed, maintained, administered, and trained for the common good and welfare; and,
- k) Perform all other duties set forth by Florida Statute for Not-for-Profit Corporations, including but not limited to filing of Federal and State tax returns, and the filing of State Annual Corporate Reports as required by law.

Section 4. DEVIATION POWERS. The Board of Directors may grant approval for deviations from the Restrictions provided for in the Bylaws and Declarations. Such approval shall require the unanimous affirmative vote of the Board of Directors, and notice to and approval of the adjacent property owners.

Appeal of a decision of the Board of Directors can be made to the General Membership at a meeting called for that purpose, or the Annual Meeting. A two-thirds majority of the members in attendance eligible to vote shall be required to overturn a decision of the Board of Directors regarding any deviation.

Certain paragraphs of the Declarations (the Deed Restrictions) may not be deviated from, under any circumstances. Those paragraphs are numbered FIVE, SIX, and TEN.

Section 5. OWNER WAIVERS. No property owner, developer, agent, assign, broker, heir, representative, or successor, without prior written approval of the Board of Directors of the Association, may impose any additional Covenants, Restrictions, or Declarations on any part of any Lot shown in the Plat of the Association.

Section 6. ACTS OF THE BOARD: INDEMNIFICATION. The members of the Board of Directors of the Association shall not be liable to any Owner or any person claiming by or through any Owner, for any act or omission of such Director in the performance of his/her duties, except if such act or omission shall involve gross negligence, bad faith, or reckless disregard of the office, and the Association shall indemnify all such Directors from all claims, demand actions, and proceedings, and any expense in connection therewith. If such Director be judicially declared to have acted in a grossly negligent manner or with bad faith or in reckless disregard of his/her duties, the Association shall not indemnify such Director.

ARTICLE XII COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Section 1. LIST. The Board of Directors shall appoint an Architectural Control Committee, as provided for in the Declaration and a Nominating Committee as provided for in these Bylaws. In addition, the following standing committees may be appointed by the Board of Directors, along with any others deemed necessary to carry out its purpose;

- a) Audit Committee
- b) Crime Watch Committee
- c) Beautification Committee
- d) Newsletter Committee
- e) Public Relations Committee
- f) Recreation Committee
- g) Welcome & Hospitality Committee
- h) Engineering Committee

Unless otherwise provided in the Bylaws, each standing Committee shall consist of a chair and two or more members in good standing. Chairs are responsible to provide a written or verbal report of the Committee's activities to the Secretary in preparation for each Board of Directors meeting. Such reports shall become a part of the meeting minutes of the Board of Directors. In cases where a Chair cannot recruit members for a Committee, the Chair may act as a Committee of one.

Section 2. ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL - GENERAL. No building, fence, dock, wall, structure, slab, building, roof, ramp, boardwalk, or other structure shall be commenced, erected, or maintained upon the Properties, nor shall any exterior addition (including pools) to, or change, or alteration be made until the plans and specifications showing the nature, kind, shape, height, materials, and location have been submitted in duplicate, and approved in writing, as to the harmony, external design, and location in relation to the surrounding structures and topography by the Architectural Control Committee of the Board of Directors of the Association. The Committee shall include one (1) member of the Board of Directors, who shall act as Chair with vote. The Architectural Control Committee shall have the right to refuse to approve any construction, plans, or specifications, lot grading, and landscaping plans which are not desirable, or suitable, in its opinion for any reason, including purely aesthetic reasons (as provided for in the Declarations) connected with future development of the Owners of lots adjacent to the land, or contiguous lands.

Section 2.1. ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL. Since the maintenance and architectural harmony and unity is essential for the preservation and enhancement of the value of the Lots, and the harmonious functioning of the community affected thereby, no improvements which may affect the environment of the Turkey Creek, its watershed, streams, runs, or sloughs, may be erected on any Lot by any Owner without the approval of the Architectural Control Committee and/or the Board of Directors of the Association.

Section 2.2. IMPROVEMENTS. The term "improvements" shall include but not be limited to, the erection of any structure, including additions to, or alterations of any building, greenhouses, the erection of any fence, scraping, excavation, or other rearranging of the surface of any Lot, the construction of any driveway, alleyway, walkway,

boardwalk, entryway, patio, pool, sauna, hot tub, fountain, or other similar item, the alteration or removal of any exterior surface, the planting or replanting or rearranging of any plant life in or near the watershed, or the dumping of any matter whatsoever into the water. These items shall apply only to this Article for the purpose of protecting the endangered environment of Turkey Creek.

Section 2.3. APPLICATION PROCEDURE. The Committee's approval disapproval, or waiver, as required by these Bylaws, shall be in writing. In the event the Committee, or its designated representative, fails to approve or disapprove within sixty (60) business days after complete plans and specifications have been submitted, approval will not be required and the related covenants shall be deemed to be fully complied with. In the event of a waiver or ambiguity in the Declarations, adjoining neighbor input will be sought before a decision is made. At least thirty (30) business days prior to the commencement of construction, such plans and specifications shall be submitted to the Committee by personal service on the Secretary of the Board of Directors at the registered address of the legal business office or to the mailing address of the Association. In the event that another member of the Board of Directors receives service of any plans, then the Secretary must be notified by the Board member to ensure that proper records are kept, and it shall be the personal responsibility of the Board member receiving the plans to deliver them immediately to the Chair of the Committee (Director-At-Large A). Two sets of plans for the new construction shall consist of not less than the following:

- a) Foundation plans
- b) Floor plans of all floors
- c) Section details
- d) Elevation drawings of all exterior walls or sides.
- e) Roof plans
- f) Plot plan and survey
- g) Landscaping drawings (highly recommended but not required)
- h) Description of all materials
- i) Turkey Creek Homeowners Permit Application (obtained from the Association Secretary)

The Plans for new lot construction shall bear the original seal of a licensed engineer or architect empowered to practice in the State of Florida by the Department of Professional Regulation. The Survey shall bear the original seal of a registered Florida Land Surveyor and signature attest. All documents shall be original as defined by the Florida Statutes for Professional Registration. No photo static copies of any sealed document shall be accepted by the Association.

Any change to the plans during construction must be approved by the Committee. The Secretary is responsible for keeping a log of all plans submitted to the Committee, together with notes of the resolution of each application.

Section 2.4. COMMITTEE STRUCTURE. The Board of Directors of the Association shall appoint an Architectural Control Committee to review and approve improvements to be made by any Owner to any Lot. The Committee may have at least two members who are not voting members of the Board of Directors, in addition to the Board Member who shall act as Chair.

Section 2.5. REVIEW PROCEDURES AND TIME FRAMES. The Committee shall meet and/or consider within thirty (30) business days after an Owner has made application for approval. The Committee shall render its decision within five (5) business days of that meeting, either approving or disapproving them, in the latter case, making specific and detailed reference to those features which caused disapproval. Approval may be conditioned upon completion within a specified reasonable time period. All decisions of the Committee shall be by majority vote. A failure of the Committee to act will result in the project being considered approved. In the event of the absence or illness of any member, the President of the Board of Directors will serve in the member's stead until the next regular Board Meeting. The signatures required on all applications will be the Chairman of the Architectural Control Committee, and the President of the Board of Directors. All disapproval decisions of the Committee, except those due to the omission of required information, must be discussed by the Board of Directors before giving notice to the applicant.

Section 2.6. APPEAL. The applicant may upon disapproval, make formal appeal to the full Board of Directors. Appeal must be make within twenty-five (25) calendar days of the notice of disapproval. Notice must be served on the Secretary of the Board of Directors. The matter shall be placed on the agenda for the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors. During the Board meeting, the applicant will have twenty (20) minutes for a presentation by personal appearance, ten (10) minutes will be allocated for surrounding neighbor input, and ten (10) minutes for Board questions, after which the matter shall be put to an immediate and binding vote. The results shall be binding on the Owner, the Board, and the Association. When circumstances, information or situations have changed, the matter may again be brought before the Board of Directors.

The applicant may, as a last resort, bring the matter once before a vote of the general membership of the Association at his own expense. If the decision of the Board of Directors is overturned, the applicant may be reimbursed for all reasonable and receipted expenses.

Section 3. AUDIT COMMITTEE. The Audit Committee is responsible for the conducting of an annual audit of the Association's financial records and books; approval of the balance sheet of the Association for presentation to the Members at the Annual Meeting; review of any bonding requirements for persons with fiscal responsibility: review or insurance needs for recommendation to the Board.

Section 4. NOMINATING COMMITTEE. The Nominating Committee shall consist of a Chair and two or more members. No member of the Nominating Committee may be currently serving on the Board of Directors, nor may they accept nomination, nor stand for election to the Board they are nominating. The Chair shall be appointed by the Board of Directors prior to the Annual Meeting, and shall select the remaining members, with the approval of the Board. The Committee shall serve from after the Annual Meeting until the

next Annual Meeting, and appointments to each successive Committee shall be announced at the close of each Annual Meeting.

Section 5. CRIME WATCH. The Crime Watch Committee shall be organized in cooperation with the Palm Bay Police Department. The Committee shall be the cornerstone for the preservation of member involvement in the protection of life, property, and general welfare of the Association and its residents. The Crime Watch Captain (Chair) shall call a meeting of all Block Captains at least once per quarter, cause the Secretary to update the Crime Watch Master List monthly, maintain direct lines of communication with each block captain, provide a liaison function with the Palm Bay Police Department, arrange for regular exchange of Crime Watch information to the members of the Association, review the qualifications of all Crime Watch Block Captains, oversee the activities of all Block Captains, plan and conduct on an annual basis mock crime events to test the functioning of the Crime Watch System, and to provide training for all Crime Watch Committee Members.

Section 6. BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE. The Beautification Committee is responsible for the upkeep and beautification of the Front Entrance area, and any other responsibilities assigned by the Board of Directors for Common Facilities owned.

Section 7. NEWSLETTER COMMITTEE. The Newsletter Committee shall publish and distribute to each resident a newsletter on at least a quarterly basis to inform the membership of the activities of the Association, and to report actions of the Board of Directors. The Newsletter Editor shall secure advertising, write and collect articles, collect reports from the President and other officers as needed, publish notices of Association and Committee Meetings, other Association events, cause a Newsletter to be published, and oversee the distribution.

Section 8. PUBLIC RELATIONS COMMITTEE. The Public Relations Committee is responsible for contact with the General Public, and the presentation of the Association viewpoint to all governmental agencies which may consider matters affecting the community. The Committee shall obtain specific Board directions and approval of any publication, appearance, or statement before it becomes public.

Section 9. RECREATION COMMITTEE. The Recreation Committee is responsible for the organization of the community's social and recreational activities (e.g. Annual Picnic, Christmas Contest, Community Yard Sale, etc.) under the supervision of the Board of Directors.

Section 10. WELCOME AND HOSPITALITY COMMITTEE. The Welcome and Hospitality Committee is responsible for providing refreshments at the Annual Meeting, if such are requested by the Board of Directors. The Committee is primarily responsible for the official greeting of all new residents of the Community, and the provision of information regarding these residents to the Secretary for Crime Watch records and the Residential Directory.

Section 11. ENGINEERING COMMITTEE. The Engineering Committee is responsible for providing to the Board of Directors, ongoing advice, technical support, analysis, opinion, recommendations, and counsel on civil, structural, mechanical, electrical, and sanitary engineering matters as they pertain to the Properties and Common Facilities.

Section 12. ACCOUNTABILITY. Each Committee is responsible to receive complaints and comments of the Association Members in its area of responsibility. Each Committee shall deal with these comments and complaints as it deems appropriate, or refer them to other Committees or the Board of Directors. A record shall be forwarded to the Secretary on each matter handled. Under no circumstances may a Member's comment or complaint go unanswered for a period of greater than thirty (30) calendar days from the first presentation to a Committee or Board of Directors Member. All Committees shall be fully accountable to the Board of Directors, and ultimately to the Membership of the Association.

ARTICLE XIII NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. NOMINATION. Nomination for election to the Board of Directors shall be made by a Nominating Committee. Nominations may also be made from the floor at the Annual Meeting. The Committee shall be appointed by the outgoing Board of Directors. The Committee shall make as many nominations for selection to the Board of Directors as it shall determine, but not less than the number of vacancies that are to be filled. Such nominations may only be made from among Association Members in good standing.

Section 2. NOMINATION PROCEDURES. The Nominating Committee shall encourage broad participation throughout the Association in securing candidates for Board of Directors positions. The Chair of the Nominating Committee shall submit to the Secretary the names of all candidates considered for nomination to the Board. Only those candidates certified by the Secretary and Treasurer as Resident Members in good standing shall be eligible for election to the Board of Directors. The Nominating Committee shall finalize the slate of nominees no later than March 30 of each year. The Board of Directors shall receive the slate at their April Meeting. No further nominations shall be accepted once the slates are finalized, excepting those from the floor at the Annual Meeting. Only Class A Members shall hold Board positions.

Section 3. OFFICES TO BE FILLED. All of the Board of Directors shall be elected and installed at the Annual Meeting of the Association. They shall serve until their successors are duly elected and installed. In the event of protest of an election, the newly elected Board shall take office. The matter shall be placed before a third party for resolution.

Section 4. ELECTION. Election to the Board of Directors shall be by secret ballot. At such election, the members or valid proxies may cast as many votes as they are entitled to exercise under the provisions of these Bylaws. The persons receiving the greatest number of votes in each office shall be elected. Cumulative voting is not permitted. Elections can only be held at the Annual Meeting in May.

ARTICLE XIV GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1. DURATION. The Provisions of these Bylaws shall run with, and bind the land, and shall inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by the Association, its legal representatives, heirs, successors, and assigns, until December 1, 2008, after which time, said Bylaws shall automatically be extended for successive periods of ten (10) years, unless an instrument signed by the Association representing the assent of the members has been recorded. No such agreement to change shall be effective unless it has been recorded in the Official Land Records of Brevard.

Section 2. ENFORCEMENT. Enforcement of these Bylaws or any Declaration of the Association shall be by any allowed legal proceeding against any Person or Persons violating, or attempting to violate any of the terms of these instruments, either (1) to restrain violation or to recover damages, and against the land to enforce any lien created herein, or (2) to enforce the Declaration. Failure by the Board of Directors to enforce any duty or obligation herein, shall in no event be deemed to be a waiver of the right to do so at any later time.

Section 3. SEVERABILITY. Invalidation of any one of these Bylaws by judgment or court order shall in no way affect any other provision, which shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 4. GOVERNING LAW. These Bylaws shall be governed and operate under the laws of the State of Florida.

Section 5. INCLUSION OF ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION. The provisions of the Articles of Incorporation of the TURKEY CREEK HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., shall become a bylaw as fully and completely as if specifically set forth.

Section 6. PARALLEL RULES. The restrictions set forth in the various documents covering the Properties shall run with the land and bind the present Owner, except as otherwise provided, its successors and assigns, and all parties claiming by, through or under it, shall be taken to hold, agree, and covenant with the Owner of said and, its or their heirs, agents, personal representatives, successors, and assigns, and with each of them to conform to and observe those restrictions as to the use of said Lots and the construction of improvements to the lots. No restriction set forth shall be personally binding on any person except in respect to breaches committed during his/her ownership of title to the Lot. No action for enforcement of these Bylaws or Declarations may be commenced until the procedure specified in these Bylaws has been completed.

ARTICLE XV NOTICES

Section 1. NOTICES. All notices given or required to be given by the Association to its' Members shall be deemed to have been actually given and received when deposited in the United States Mail, postage prepaid, first class to the address of the Member as it appears on the book of the Association. This notice given by U.S. Mail shall be deemed to have been given and mailed, whether or not it is actually received.

Section 2. PERSONAL SERVICE. Personal hand service by a Member of the Board of Directors of the Association on a Member of the Association shall carry the same force and effect as service via the U.S. Mail. Hand service under the direct supervision and control of a Member of the Board of Directors shall be valid. Service by hand need not be to the person directly. Service by posting on the front entry of the residence shall be considered valid hand service, as provided for by Florida Statute.

ARTICLE XVI AMENDMENTS

Section 1. PROCEDURE. These Bylaws may be amended at a regular or special meeting of the Membership of the Association, by an affirmative vote of three-quarters (3/4) of the total eligible Memberships. Provisions of the Bylaws that are governed by the Articles of incorporation may be amended as provided in the Articles or by the applicable Statutes of the State of Florida for Not-For-Profit Corporations. Provisions that are governed by the Declarations may be amended as provided in the Declarations.

Section 2. CONFLICT. In the case of conflict between the Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws, the Articles shall govern. In the case of conflict between the Declarations and these Bylaws, the Declarations shall govern. Conflict between the Articles and the Declarations shall be resolved at law.

Section 3. PROPOSED AMENDMENTS. Proposed amendments to these Bylaws shall be presented in writing to the Secretary, and contain the signatures of five (5) percent of the Members of the Association in good standing in support. The proposal shall then be considered by the Board of Directors at the next regular meeting of the Board. The Board of Directors shall decide at that meeting to what extent if any that the Board of Directors shall endorse the proposal. In the event that the Board of Directors endorses the proposal, the Association shall bear the costs of voting on the matter at the next scheduled meeting of the Membership. If the Board of Directors declines to endorse the proposal, then those Members submitting the proposal shall bear the costs of voting. The costs of voting shall be paid to the Association before the matter is placed before the Membership. Costs shall be limited to those that are reasonable and customary. In the event that the matter shall extend beyond one (1) year without payment or vote, then the proposal shall be null and void. If the proposed amendment is approved then, the member who submitted this proposal shall be reimbursed for all receipted costs. The Board of Directors shall have the right to advise the Membership on the proposal, recommend either for or against, and indicate the impact to the Association of the adoption of any proposal.

Section 4. COPIES OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS. Copies of any proposed amendment shall be delivered to each Member of the Association along with the notice of the meeting at which it is to be acted on.

Section 5. AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS BY THE ASSOCIATION BOARD OF DIRECTORS. The Association Board of Directors reserves, and shall have the sole right to:

- a) Amend these Bylaws for the purpose of curing any ambiguity or inconsistency between the provisions;
- b) Release any building plot from any part of the Declarations which has been violated before the adoption of these Bylaws, including violations of building restrictions if the Board of Directors, in its sole judgment, determines such violation to be minor or insubstantial.

ARTICLE XVII BOOKS, RECORDS, AND PAPERS

Section 1. INSPECTION. The books, records, and papers of the Association shall at all times be available upon reasonable notice to the inspection of any current member of the Association. Such inspections shall be at reasonable times, by appointment or agreement.

Section 2. COPIES. Copies of any and all documents of the Association shall be available to current members for a reasonable cost per page.

ARTICLE XVIII INSURANCE

Section 1. POLICIES. The Board of Directors may obtain a master policy of fire and extended coverage insurance covering all improvements of the Common Facilities, if it deems it necessary.

Section 2. ATTORNEY IN FACT. Each Owner hereby appoints the Board of Directors as its agent and attorney in fact for the collection of all proceeds payable under any insurance policy. The Board of Directors may negotiate, compromise and settle any disputed claim with any insurance company providing the insurance and execute any releases, acquittance, discharges, and other documents as may be necessary to effect such settlements, and may institute such actions at law as it deems necessary to collect the proceeds of such insurance.

Section 3. RESTORATION. In the event of a casualty loss covered under the insurance, the Board of Directors shall collect all proceeds and will, to the extent of such proceeds, repair, restore, and replace any damaged or destroyed structures to their same, or similar condition existing just prior to the damage or destruction. The Board of Directors shall not be liable to any Owner for delay in the completion of repairs, restoration, or replacement due to causes beyond the reasonable control of the Board of Directors or its contractors. This is to include delay caused by weather, shortage or unavailability of materials, strikes or other work stoppages.

HOMEOWNERS duly elected repr signed in the nan quorum meeting obtained the con- payment of the the Corporate Seal to	S ASSOCIATION, INC., I resentatives of the said come of the Directors and C of the general membershent of a majority of the rehen current fiscal years A be be attested to by the Secondary of th	the Directors and Officers of the TURKEY CREEK have hereunto set our hands and seals as the orporation, and have caused this instrument to be officers of the Corporation upon the duly called hip of the said corporation, and after having members present eligible to vote upon full annual Assessment, and have caused the cretary,
This	day, of	, 198, A.D.
ATTEST:		
SECRETARY		PRESIDENT
		VICE-PRESIDENT
		TREASURER
		DIRECTOR-AT-LARGE A
		DIRECTOR-AT-LARGE B
		DIRECTOR-AT-LARGE C

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF FLORIDA)) TO WIT:
COUNTY OF FLORIDA) 10 WII:)
	ed authority qualified to take acknowledgements in the onally appeared to me well known, and to me known to
Bylaws of THE TURKEY CREET installed Officers and Directors ASSOCIATION, INC., a Floridato, and before me they executed Treasurer, Secretary, and Direct seal affixed to the foregoing installed.	and who have executed the foregoing instrument, the K HOWEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC, as the legally of the above named TURKEY CREEK HOMEOWNERS Not-For-Profit Corporation, and severally acknowledged said the aforesaid instrument as President, Vice-President ors-At-Large, of said corporation, and that the corporate rument, if any, is the corporate seal of said corporation, ument by due, and regular corporate authority, and that ad deed of said corporation.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I day of	have set my hand, and official seal, this, A.D.
	Notary Public at Large in Florida

SEAL: